

## **GLENN COUNTY PROBATION DEPARTMENT**

Brandon D. Thompson - Chief Probation Officer
541 West Oak Street

Willows, California 95988

Office: 530.934.6416 Facsimile: 530.934.6468

## GLENN COUNTY COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS PARTNERSHIP MEETING May 28, 2015 Minutes

**CCP Membership Present:** Chief Probation Officer Brandon Thompson; Court Executive Officer Hugh Swift; Health & Human Services Agency (HHSA) Interim Director Robyn Krause; District Attorney Dwayne Stewart; Public Defender Albert Smith; Willows Police Chief Jason Dahl; Sheriff Richard Warren

**CCP Membership Absent:** Supervisor John Viegas and GCOE Superintendent Tracey Quarne

**Others Present:** DCPO Beatty, Probation Department; Lt. James Miranda, Sheriff's Office; Roxanne Baillergeon, Health & Human Services Agency; SPO Scott Teague, Probation Department; Jhan Dunn, Office of Education; and Olivia Ramirez, Probation Department.

**Call to Order and Attendance:** Chief Thompson called the meeting to order at 1:32 PM. Introductions were made by all present.

**Approval of Minutes:** Minutes from the November 4, 2014 meeting were passed out and reviewed. Albert Smith moved to approve the Minutes and Chief Jason Dahl seconded the motion. Vote to approve was unanimous.

**Public Comment:** There was no public comment from the floor or on agenda items.

## **Information/Discussion/Action Items:**

**4A:** Chief Thompson reviewed the first agenda item regarding the estimated 2015-2016 CCP-AB109 Allocation of \$1,090,730, which consisted of the 2015-2016 base allocation of \$972,942 and the 2014-2015 estimated growth allocation of \$117,788. Chief Thompson advised that once the county closed the books and things are finalized, that by our next CCP meeting, we would be able to provide the exact breakdown of what was not spent of the 2014-2015 budget, and what we can use in 2015-2016.

District Attorney Dwayne Stewart asked if departments are able to use the funds as they want, once it's broken down to individual departments. Chief Probation Officer Brandon Thompson explained that based on the funds available, departments will submit their budget proposals to the CCP Committee at a CCP meeting for approval. Mr. Stewart asked if the District Attorney's budget was also included. He was informed that the DA budget was a separate allocation and not part of the base allocation. He was advised that he may want to contact the Department of Finance regarding his allocation. Discussion was had as to how the state comes up with our total allocation, including any growth amount. These amounts are based on a lot of factors, including how many individuals in state prison are being released, in addition to any other type of offenders we may need to deal with, such as parole violators.

**4B:** DCPO Beatty started off on the next agenda item with updates from partner agencies. He advised in terms of Probation, that there are no changes in the number of PRCS, and that there are 20-25 people on PRCS supervision. Mandatory Supervision folks are the ones that are going to continue to increase, because they are the folks that are not able to be sentenced to prison.

DCPO Beatty discussed how the Learning Center is up and running and a good resource for those individuals to utilize. He also discussed how Glenn County Office of Education had developed and started their Charter School, inside and outside of the jail. Not only AB109 clients, but the whole county can benefit from this program. The program was developed and designed with AB109 in mind, so these individuals could get their education. The jail will have its first in house graduate next week, through Success One.

Al Smith asked if there was transportation available for individuals to get to the Learning Center. Roxanne Baillergeon of HHSA responded that Al and Pedro are given access to a vehicle in order to get them there. Mr. Smith asked how it was going. Mrs. Baillergeon said that it was going well. She explained the array of services being provided, including the Charter School providing educational services, and assisting people in getting their diplomas, and/or getting them into tech or trade schools. Classes in anger management are also being provided twice a week, as well as the Courage to Change program, which helps them with their criminogenic needs. Computer skills and job skills are also taught. Each person has an assessment completed to see if they need Drug and Alcohol or Mental Health services. Mrs. Baillergeon mentioned numbers/referrals have dropped. This might be linked with Prop 47. Mr. Smith asked about basic literacy. Mrs. Baillergeon mentioned that services were being provided by Office of Education. Jhan Dunn, principal of Success One, commented that basic literacy and Success One Charter School are at the Learning center weekly. Ms. Dunn stated she understands that literacy is a big deal with this population. She provides a two prong approach where an individual can work on their literacy, and at the same time, they can work towards earning their GED or high school diploma. She also stated she can work around someone's employment, if they desire to go back to school and work at the same time. Ms. Dunn mentioned that it was going well, but would like to expand what they are doing, and would like to see more referrals.

Sheriff Warren stated that their programs seem to be working well, and he has been happy with some of the success they have had with their Alternative Custody Sentencing. Unfortunately, the Sheriff has been having some staffing issues. They have been able to keep the programs going by utilizing Lt. Miranda and Sergeant Bouldin with overtime. Sheriff Warren has a replacement in mind to take over the ASC program, however, the ASC program takes a fully seasoned sworn officer off the street, and in order to replace him, it's going to take a year or so to replace them. Sheriff Warren needs to take care of the replacement on the street before he can get an officer back into the ACS program. Sheriff Warren has concerns with ongoing medical costs within the jail. The need for preventive care, and ongoing care, verses acute care impacts their costs.

Lt. Miranda reported that in-custody inmates were transported to the Learning Center in Orland in order to participate in the programs with Pedro and Al. However, due to smuggling of drugs into the jail, all services and programs will be inside the facility. Mr. Smith thought that the original plan was to have the services/programs in the jail. Lt. Miranda stated the jail lacks the necessary space to provide programs. Sheriff Warren explained the jail was not successful with the SB1022 grant, (which authorizes certain revenue bonds for the construction of prison facilities), but is hopeful to be successful on the next run, which is SB 863. It is difficult for small counties to complete with larger counties when it comes to the bond funding.

Further discussion took place regarding the facility transitioning from a jail to a prison. There are difficulties of having prison commitments, with years of confinement time, sentenced to a jail that was designed for shorter stays.

**4C:** Chief Thompson requested to replace the Deputy Chief Probation Officer with a Supervising Probation Officer. Health & Human Services Agency (HHSA) Interim Director Robyn Krause made the motion to approve the replacement of the Deputy Chief Probation Officer with Supervising Probation Officer. Sheriff Warren seconded the motion. Motion passed with 6 ayes; Sheriff Warren, Chief Dahl, Albert Smith, Dwayne Stewart, Robyn Krause, and Brandon Thompson, with Hugh Swift abstaining.

**4D:** Chief Thompson requested for Probation to re-allocate funds due to salary savings in Probation's CCP budget for the purchase of a narcotics detecting canine. Chief Dahl moved to approve the motion. Sheriff Warren seconded. Motion passed with 5 ayes; Sheriff Warren, Chief Dahl, Dwayne Stewart, Robyn Krause, Brandon Thompson. One nay; Al Smith, with Hugh Swift abstaining.

**4E:** Next CCP meeting scheduled for August 20, 2015 at 1:30 p.m., in the Jail Conference Room.

The meeting was adjourned at 2:43 PM.